1	Conte	tents			
2	TRIBAL COUNCIL POLICY & PROCEDURE – TRIBAL COUNCIL MEETINGS,				
3	COM	IMITTEE MEETING, WORK-SESSION and HEARING (TCP&P0002)	3		
4	I. P	PURPOSE	3		
5	II. I	DEFINITIONS	3		
6	III. (OPEN MEETINGS	7		
7	IV. T	TRIBAL COUNCIL MEETINGS	8		
8	A.	Council Meetings.	8		
9	В.	Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council and Committee Meetings	8		
10	D.	Emergency Meetings.	9		
11	E.	Notice of Special or Emergency Meetings.	9		
12	F.	Records			
13	V. (COMMITTEE MEETINGS	10		
14	A.	Committee Meeting	10		
15	В.	Special Committee Meetings.	10		
16	C.	Emergency Committee Meetings.	11		
17	VI. T	TRIBAL COUNCIL WORK-SESSIONS	11		
18	A.	Regularly Scheduled Work-Sessions.	11		
19	В.	Special Work-Sessions.	11		
20	C.	Notice of Special or Emergency Work-Sessions	12		
21	VII.T	TRIBAL COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE PUBLIC HEARINGS	13		
22	A.	Public Hearings.	13		
23	В.	Notice of Hearing.	13		
24	C.	Hearing Requirements.	13		
25	D.	Testimony	14		
26	VIII.	PUBLIC COMMENTS	15		
27	IX. S	SETTING THE AGENDA for TRIBAL COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MEET	INGS		
28	1	6			
29	A.	Agenda Requests.	16		
30	В.	Submission of Agenda Request.	17		
31	C.	Amendment of the Agenda.	17		
32	D.	Recording.	17		
33	X. (ORDER OF MEETING	17		
34	A.	Call to Order.	17		
35	B.	Opening Ceremony.	17		

1	С.	Roll Call.	18
2	D.	Adoption of Agenda.	18
3	E.	Approval of Minutes.	18
4	F.	Action Items.	19
5	G.	General Session for Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meetings	19
6	Н.	General Session for Regularly Scheduled Committee Meetings.	19
7	I.	Closed Session	20
8	J.	Adjournment.	21
9	XI. A	ACTIONS BY THE TRIBAL COUNCIL	21
10	A.	Action by Roll Call Vote.	21
11	B.	Action by Motion.	22
12	XII.A	CTIONS BY THE COMMITTEE	23
13	XIII.	MEETING MINUTES	24
14	A.	Official Record.	24
15	В.	General Provisions.	24
16	C.	Contents of the Minutes.	25
17	XIV.	DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES	27
18	XV.	CHANGE IN MEETING SCHEDULE or CLOSURE	28
19	A.	Change in Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council or Committee Meeting	28
20	В.	Changes in Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Work-Session.	28
21	C.	Canceling of Tribal Council or Committee Meeting or Work-Session	28
22	D.	Emergency Closing.	28
23	XVI.	MEETING, WORK-SESSION, AND HEARING CONDUCT	29
24	CER	ΓΙFICATION	31
25			
26			
27			
28			
29			
30			
31			

1	
2	TRIBAL COUNCIL POLICY AND PROCEDURE - TRIBAL COUNCIL MEETINGS,
3	COMMITTEE MEETINGS,
4	WORK-SESSIONS and HEARINGS
5	short-title: TCP&P00002
6	
7	
8	I. PURPOSE
9	
10	The purpose of this Policy is to establish standards to govern the conduct of Tribal Council
11	Meetings, Tribal Council Committee Meetings, Special Meetings, Emergency Meetings,
12	Regularly Scheduled Work-Sessions, Special Work-Sessions and Hearings, and to repeal the
13	following policies: Policy and Procedures for Rescheduling Tribal Council Meetings in the
14	Event of an Emergency Closure; Little Traverse Bay Bands Of Odawa Indians Public Comment
15	Policy; Little Traverse Bay Bands Of Odawa Indians Tribal Council and its Committees Public
16	Hearing Policy for General Rules of Conduct; Tribal Council Meeting Procedure Policy-as
17	amended and approved June 25, 2020; Tribal Council Meeting Policy and Procedures for
18	Electronic Meetings Related to Open Meetings, Participation, Public Comments and Motions;
19	Tribal Council Meeting Policy and Procedures for Recording, Storage and Posting; and Little
20	Traverse Bay Bands Of Odawa Indians Tribal Council Standing Committees Meeting Policy and
21	Procedures.
22	
23	
24	II. DEFINITIONS
25	
26	A. "Chairperson" or "Executive" means the individual elected to lead the Executive
27	branch of the government.
28	
29	B. "Committees" or "Tribal Council Committees" means the Standing Committees of
30	Tribal Council and may include the Land and Reservation Committee, the Appropriation and
31	Finance Committee, and other such committees as established by Tribal Council.
32	
33	C. "Committee Chairperson" means the Councilor that will chair the Committee meeting
34	and is determined either by law or amongst the members of the Committee, as applicable.
35	

1	D. "Constitution" means the Constitution of the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa
2	Indians, adopted February 1, 2005.
3	
4	E. "Electronic Meeting" or "Online Meeting" means a Tribal Council Meeting or
5	Committee Meeting that is utilizing an online meeting platform, such as Zoom or Microsoft
6	Teams.
7	
8	F. "Emergency Meeting" means a meeting of Tribal Council wherein immediate official
9	action of the Tribal Council is necessary to preserve or promote essential interests of the Tribe,
10	and is either called by the Legislative Leader or three fourths (3/4) majority of the Tribal
11	Council, and which the agenda is restricted to the urgent subject matter necessitating the
12	meeting.
13	
14	G. "Guest" means a person invited to attend a Tribal Council meeting, Committee meeting
15	work-session or hearing.
16	
17	H. "Immediate Family" or "Family member" means a person who is related to a Tribal
18	Citizen by one of the following relationships: wife, husband, son, daughter, mother, father,
19	brother, sister, step-mother, step-father, step-brother, step-sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law,
20	child, step-child, grandmother, grandfather, brother-in-law and sister-in-law.
21	
22	I. "Legal matter(s)" means matter(s) where the Tribe is, or may be, a party to a legal
23	proceeding in a federal, state, or Tribal court or an administrative forum addressing a matter to
24	which the attorney-client privilege attaches or a matter where the Tribe is considering acting in
25	its legal capacity as a party. Legal matters may be discussed by the Tribal Council in closed
26	session.
27	I "I spieletive I sed on? means the Tribel Council Officer as identified in Anticle VII & C
28	J. "Legislative Leader" means the Tribal Council Officer as identified in Article-VII, § C
29	(1) of the Constitution, and for the purpose of this Policy, in the absence of the Legislative
30	Leader, the Secretary shall facilitate the meeting, work-session or hearing, in the absence of the

Legislative Leader and Secretary, the Treasurer shall facilitate the meeting, work-session or 31

hearing, in accordance with the Constitution.

32 33 34

35

K. "Majority vote" means vote of a majority of Tribal Councilors present at a meeting where there is a quorum; unless otherwise specified by the Constitution or law.

22

R. "Record" means an official document or writing as part of a Tribal Council meeting and as recorded in the minutes.

24 25 26

S. "Recording" means the audio and visual recording of an electronic Tribal Council meeting, Work- Session, Committee meeting, and other Tribal Council meetings.

27 28 29

30

31 32 T. "Regularly Scheduled Work-Sessions" mean an informal meeting of Tribal Council for the purpose of reviewing and discussing matters related to the exercise of powers delegated to the Tribal Council in Article VII, § A, B, C and D of the Constitution, and receiving and discussing public comment on Legislative matters. A quorum is not required, no official action shall be taken, nor shall an official record be taken.

33 34 35

U. "Resolution" means an Official action by the Tribe and carries the force of law, and is

1 duly enacted pursuant to Constitutional Article VII, § D (1). 2 V. "Roll Call Vote" mean a vote by calling each Tribal Councilor by name requesting their 3 Roll call vote or abstention. The Roll call vote shall be made according to last name in 4 alphabetical order and concluding with a Roll call vote by the Treasurer, Secretary and 5 6 Legislative Leader. 7 8 W. "Secretary" means a Tribal Council Officer whose duties are in accordance with Tribal Constitution, Article VII, § C (2) and by Statute. 9 10 X. 11 "Special Council Meetings" means a meeting of the Tribal Council that is either called by the Legislative Leader; that is called by at least five (5) of nine (9) Tribal Councilors; or by 12 request of the Executive; and which the agenda is restricted to the purpose for which the meeting 13 was called. 14 15 "Special Work-Sessions" means a Work-Session that require a motion of Tribal Council 16 Y. 17 which states who is authorized to attend and the purpose for the Special Work-Session. 18 Z. 19 "Statute" means a law duly enacted pursuant to Constitution Article VII, § D (1). 20 "Treasurer" means a Tribal Council Officer who duties are in accordance with Tribal 21 AA. Constitution, Article VII, § C (3) and Statute. 22 23 24 BB. "Tribal Affiliation" means identifying by means of Tribal enrollment number, relationship to a Tribal Citizen, or employment or appointment status. 25 26 "Tribal Council Meeting" means an open session of a Regularly Scheduled Tribal 27 CC. Council Meeting in which a quorum of Tribal Council is present, and business is transacted. 28 29 30 DD. "Tribal Citizen" means a person duly enrolled with the Tribe as a tribal member. 31 "Tribal Council" means the legislative body described in Article VII, § A of the 32 EE. Constitution. 33 34

"Tribal Councilor" means a person duly elected to the Tribal Council pursuant to the

FF.

1	proces	ss described in Article XII of the Constitution.
2	GG.	"Tribal Council Officers" means the Legislative Leader, Secretary and Treasurer as set
4		the Constitution Article VII, § B.
5	out m	the constitution in the constitution of the co
6	нн.	"Tribe" means the Little Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians.
7	1111.	Tribe incans the Entire Traverse Bay Bands of Saawa Incians.
8		
9	III.	OPEN MEETINGS
10		
11	A.	Pursuant to constitutional Article VII, J (8), all meetings of Tribal Council and its
12	Comn	nittees, except phone conferences and closed sessions, are open to all Tribal Citizens. By
13	major	ity vote, the Tribal Council or Committee may exclude anyone who is not within the
14	defini	tion of public from all or part of a meeting.
15		
16	B.	Attendees of meetings held by Tribal Council and its Committees, shall identify
17	thems	elves with their name and Tribal affiliation (Tribal Citizen with enrollment number,
18	imme	diate family of a Tribal Citizen, employee or other appointed official on business) when
19	enteri	ng a meeting, signing into an electronic meeting, or at the request of the Legislative Leader,
20	Comn	nittee Chairperson, or Legislative staff.
21		
22	C.	Three (3) attempts will be made to gather identifying information of attendees. Failure, or
23		l, to provide identifying information will result in removal from the meeting by the
24	Legisl	ative Leader, Committee Chairperson, or Legislative staff.
25		
26	D.	Non-citizens, who are not immediate family of a Tribal Citizen, employee or other
27		nted official on business, may attend open meetings by receiving sponsorship from a Tribal
28		cilor. The Tribal Councilor in receipt of a sponsorship request shall forward the request to
29		Council or Committee members. If there is any objection to the sponsorship, the
30	Legisl	ative Leader or Chairperson shall ask for a majority vote to confirm admittance.
31		
32	E.	Any representative from the media shall immediately present their media credentials to
33	Tribal	Council or the Committee upon entering any meeting, work-session, or hearing.
34		
35	F.	Notice of Recording. The Legislative Leader, Committee Chairperson, or Legislative

2	meetin	gs, and other Tribal Council meetings that the meeting is being recorded.
3		
4	137	TRIBAL COUNCIL MEETINGS
5	IV.	TRIBAL COUNCIL MEETINGS
6 7	A.	Council Meetings.
8	A.	Council Meetings.
9	Those	meetings of the Tribal Council, held in person or electronically, at least once a month, at
10		official business is transacted in accordance with Article VII, § J (4) of the Constitution.
11		il Meetings shall be open to Tribal Citizens, Tribal employees, appointed officials, and the
12		as defined by this policy. Any other person who does not meet one of these classifications
13	_	e excluded from the meeting by majority vote.
14	•	
15	B.	Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meetings.
16		
17	Meetin	g schedules shall be set by Motion by the last Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council
18	Meetin	g of each calendar year and shall include the date, time and location.
19		
20	C.	Special Council Meetings.
21		
22	•	l Meetings of the Tribal Council, may be called by the Legislative Leader; at least five (5)
23		(9) Tribal Councilors; or by request from the Executive; shall include the purpose(s) of
24	-	ecial Meeting, the date, time and location of the requested Special meeting, Special
25		gs shall be restricted to the purpose for which the meeting was called. Special Meeting
26	notice	requirements are found below, in Article IV, § E of this document.
27		
28		1. If the Legislative Leader is calling for a Special Meeting, the Legislative Leader
29		shall provide the purpose(s) date, time and location of the Special Meeting.
30		2 If a majority of Tribal Council is recovering a Special Masting, a phone nall will
31		2. If a majority of Tribal Council is requesting a Special Meeting, a phone poll will be conducted that outborizes Special Meeting and shall include the purposes of data time.
32 33		be conducted that authorizes Special Meeting and shall include the purpose(s), date, time and location of the Special Meeting. If a majority of Tribal Council votes in favor, the
34		Special Meeting shall be held.
35		Special Precing Shall be note.
55		

staff shall announce at the start of an online Tribal Council meeting, work sessions, committee

1 2 3			If the Executive is requesting a Special Meeting, the Legislative Leader shall ize a phone poll of Tribal Council to authorize a Special Meeting that shall include rpose(s), date, time and location of the Special Meeting. If a majority of Tribal
4		Counc	il votes in favor, the Special Meeting shall be held.
5	D.	Emono	vonay Maatings
6 7	υ.	Linerg	gency Meetings.
8	Emero	ency M	eetings of the Tribal Council may be called pursuant to Article VII, § J (6) of the
9	_	-	to take official action(s) deemed necessary for the preservation or promotion of
10			ests of the Tribe, and may be called by the Legislative Leader or by a Tribal
11			h written support of at least 3/4 majority of Tribal Councilors. Emergency Meeting
12			ments are found below, in Article IV, § E of this document.
13		1	,
14		1.	A call or request for an Emergency Meeting shall indicate why an Emergency
15		Meetin	ng is necessary.
16			
17		2.	If the Legislative Leader is requesting an Emergency Meeting, the Legislative
18		Leader	, shall provide the purpose(s), date, time and location of the Emergency
19			
20		3.	If 3/4 majority of Tribal Councilors are requesting an Emergency Meeting, the
21		Legisla	ative Leader, or Legislative staff, must schedule an Emergency Meeting as soon as
22		is reaso	onably possible but in no case more than twenty-four (24) hours from the time a
23		reques	t for an Emergency Meeting is received.
24			
25	E.	Notice	of Special or Emergency Meetings.
26			
27		1.	Notice of a Special Meeting shall be given to all Tribal Councilors, and the Tribal
28		Chairp	erson, by Legislative staff.
29			
30		2.	Notice of a Special Meeting shall be posted at least five (5) days in advance of the
31		Specia	l Meeting by Legislative staff.
32		2	
33		3.	Notice of Emergency Meetings shall be provided immediately by Legislative
34		staff.	
35			

1		4.	Notice may be given by means of text, phone call, electronic mail, electronic
2	facsimile or standard mail.		
3			
4		5.	Sufficiency of Notice. Notice of a Special Meeting shall be considered given
5		when:	
6			a. A Tribal Councilor is contacted directly via telephone, text, or electronic
7			mail and informed of the meeting verbally or in writing.
8			b. Each Tribal Councilor must be provided with the date, time, location, and
9			purpose of the Special Meeting.
10			c. The Legislative Office shall make at least three (3) attempts at providing
11			notice to a Tribal Councilor. If a Tribal Councilor has not responded after four (4)
12			hours of the first attempt the Legislative Office shall try at least two (2) more
13			times at one (1) hour intervals to reach the Tribal Councilor. In the event three (3)
14			successive attempts at reaching a Tribal Councilor are unsuccessful, notice shall
15			be considered given.
16			d. Posting. Legislative staff shall have the date, time, place, and a
17			description of the purpose of the Special Meeting, posted to the Tribal Website.
18			
19	F.	Recor	ds.
20			
21	The T	ribal Co	ouncil shall keep records of Special and Emergency meetings at the Legislative
22			ds shall include the date, time, location, reason for the meeting, and the action(s)
23	taken.	The rec	cords shall be available to the Tribal Citizens to the same extent as Regularly
24	Sched	uled Tri	bal Council Meeting minutes. Rules regarding closed sessions and closed sessions
25	minute	es apply	The Legislative staff shall be responsible for recording and keeping of online
26	Tribal	Counci	l Special and Emergency meetings.
27			
28	V.	COM	MITTEE MEETINGS
29			
30	A.	Comn	nittee Meeting.
31			
32	Those	meeting	gs of the Committee, at which official business is transacted.
33			
34	B.	Regula	arly Scheduled Committee Meetings.

1		mittee Meeting schedules shall be set by Motion by the last Regularly Scheduled Committee
2	Meet	ing of each calendar year and shall include the date, time and location.
3		
4	C.	Special Committee Meetings.
5	~	
6	•	al Committee Meetings may be called, in accordance with this Policy, by the Committee
7 8		rperson, and shall include the purpose(s) of the Special Meeting, the date, time and location e Special meeting, and shall be in writing to all Committee members. Special Meetings
9		be restricted to the purpose for which the meeting was called. The notice requirements in
10		le IV, § E above apply to Special Committee Meetings.
11	D.	Emergency Committee Meetings.
12	υ.	Emergency Committee Meetings.
13	Emer	gency Meetings may be called, in accordance with this Policy, by the Committee
14		person to take official action(s) deemed necessary for the preservation or promotion of
15		tial interests of the Tribe. The notice requirements in Article IV, § E above apply to
16		gency Committee Meetings.
17		
18		
19	VI.	TRIBAL COUNCIL WORK-SESSIONS
20		
21	A.	Regularly Scheduled Work-Sessions.
22		
23	Work	c-Sessions shall be set by Motion by the last Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meeting of
24	each	calendar year and shall include the date, time and location.
25		
26	B.	Special Work-Sessions or Emergency Work-Sessions.
27		
28	-	al Work-Sessions and Emergency Work-Sessions require a motion of Tribal Council that
29		he date, time and location of Special or Emergency Work-Sessions, and states the purpose
30		e Special Work-Session or Emergency Work-Session. Notice of a Special or Emergency
31	Work	x-Session shall be posted in accordance with Article VI, § C below.
32		
33		1. If the Legislative Leader is calling a Special or Emergency Work-Session, then
34		the Legislative Leader, shall provide the purpose (s), date, time and location of the

Special or Emergency Work-Session to all Tribal Councilors and the Tribal Chairperson.

1			
2		2.	If a majority of Tribal Council is requesting a Special or Emergency Work-
3		Sessio	on, then a phone poll will be conducted that authorizes Special or Emergency Work-
4		Sessio	on and shall include the purpose (s), date, time and location. If a majority of Tribal
5		Counc	cil votes in favor, the Special or Emergency Work-Session shall be held.
6			
7	C.	Notic	e of Special or Emergency Work-Sessions.
8			
9		1.	Notice of a Special Work-Session shall be given to all Tribal Councilors and the
10		Tribal	Chairperson, by Legislative staff.
11			
12		2.	Notice of a Special Work-Session shall be posted at least five (5) days in advance
13		of the	Special Work-Session.
14			
15		3.	Notice of Emergency Work-Session shall be provided immediately by Legislative
16		staff.	
17			
18		4.	Notice may be given by means of text, phone call, electronic mail, electronic
19		facsin	nile or standard mail.
20			
21		5.	Sufficiency of Notice. Notice of a Special or Emergency Work-Session shall be
22		consid	dered given when:
23			
24			a. A Tribal Councilor is contacted directly via telephone, text, phone call,
25			electronic mail and informed of the meeting verbally or in writing.
26			b. Each Tribal Councilor must be provided with the date, time, and location
27			of the Special or Emergency Work-Session.
28			c. The Legislative Office shall make at least three (3) attempts at providing
29			notice to a Tribal Councilor. If a Tribal Councilor has not responded after four (4)
30			hours of the first attempt the Legislative Office shall try at least two (2) more
31			times at one (1) hour intervals to reach the Tribal Councilor. In the event three (3)
32			successive attempts at reaching a Tribal Councilor are unsuccessful, notice shall
33			be considered given.

The date, time, and place for each Special or Emergency Work-Session,

together with a description of the purpose of the Special Work-Session shall be

d.

34

1		posted to the Tribal Website.
2	D.	Posting. Legislative staff shall have the date, time, place, and a description of the purpose
4	of the	Special Meeting, posted to the Tribal Website.
5		
6		
7	VII.	TRIBAL COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE PUBLIC HEARINGS
8		
9	A.	Public Hearings.
10		
11	Public	hearings are held to gather testimony or comment for a specific purpose and in a
12	respec	tful manner.
13		
14	В.	Notice of Hearing.
15		
16	All pu	blic hearings shall be posted at least five (5) days in advance of the hearing.
17		
18	C.	Hearing Requirements.
19		
20		1. Public hearings may be called by the Legislative Leader or a Committee
21		Chairperson.
22		
23		2. A quorum of Tribal Councilors or Committee Members is not needed to hold a
24		public hearing.
25		
26		3. The Legislative Leader, Committee Chairperson, or their designee, for the
27		purposes of this Policy, will be referred to as the "Presiding Councilor" and shall preside
28		of the hearing.
29		
30		4. The hearing shall be called to order, and presided over by the Presiding
31		Councilor.
32		All public hearings shall be open to the public and invited quests
33		5. All public hearings shall be open to the public, and invited guests.
34		All public hearing shall be recorded
35		6. All public hearing shall be recorded.

1		
2	D.	Testimony
3		
4		1. Testimony may be limited to the public and invitees. All others who would like to
5		give testimony may request permission to do so. A request for permission to give
6		testimony shall be made in writing, to the Presiding Councilor and may be granted at the
7		discretion of the Presiding Councilor.
8		2. The Presiding Councilor shall require each individual that provides oral testimony
9		
10		to announce their name, enrollment number or tribal affiliation, or status as invited guest.
11 12		3. Each person that testifies shall receive recognition by name from the Presiding
13		Councilor in order to begin their testimony.
14		councilor in order to begin their testimony.
15		4. Government employees and officials, invited guests, and Tribal Councilors that
16		provide testimony, may be called to give testimony ahead of members of the public, by
17		the Presiding Councilor.
18		
19		5. Each individual's opening testimony shall be limited in duration to five (5)
20		minutes.
21		
22		6. The Tribal Councilors or Committee members may ask questions by direct
23		inquiry of the person testifying.
24		
25		7. The Presiding Councilor may decide a testimony to be irrelevant, incompetent,
26		repetitious, or discourteous to Tribal Council, other persons testifying, or any attendee,
27		and may limit such testimony.
28		
29		8. Tribal Councilors or the Committee members will not answer questions from
30		persons providing testimony unless otherwise allowed by the Presiding Councilor.
31		
32		9. Persons under the age of eighteen (18) shall only testify with the presence of and
33		permission from a parent or legal guardian.
34		
35		10. Written testimony shall be accepted by the Tribal Council Legislative Office,

1		Administrative Complex, 7500 Odawa Circle, Harbor Springs, MI 49740, any time prior
2		to the hearing and within fifteen (15) days after the completion of the hearing. Written
3		testimony must include a signature, date, and tribal affiliation. Written testimony received
4		prior to or during a hearing shall not be read aloud at the hearing.
5		
6	VIII.	PUBLIC COMMENTS
7		
8	A.	Tribal Council will entertain two (2) "Public Comment" periods during Regularly
9	Sched	uled Tribal Council Meetings.
10		
11	В.	Committees will entertain at least one (1) "Public Comment" period during Regularly
12	Sched	uled Committee Meetings.
13		
14	C.	Public Comment period shall be up to fifteen (15) minutes in duration.
15	_	
16	D.	Public Comment will only be available to a Citizen and their immediate family members.
17	-	ne else wanting to make a public comment shall request to be placed on the agenda;
18	appro	val or denial shall be by motion.
19	_	
20	E.	To receive Public Comment, the Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson shall
21	-	st the speaker give their full name and Tribal enrollment number or identify themselves as
22		mediate family member of a Tribal Citizen. Public comments will be received verbally or
23		ting. If participating electronically, the Tribal Citizen or immediate family member may
24		the their microphone or place a comment in the "chat". Public comments submitted via
25		must be identified as a "public comment" and submitted during the time for public
26 27	comm	ent.
28	F.	Written public comments received through "chat" and identified as public comment may
29		d aloud by the Legislative Leader during public comment period. Any comments not
30		nated as "public comment", will not be read or entered into the official record as a "public
31	comm	•
32	Commi	
33	G.	Each person shall be granted three (3) minutes for their public comment. An extension of
34		two (2) minutes may be granted at the discretion of the Legislative Leader or Committee
35	_	person.

1				
2	Н.	Elders	speak	first. Elders are recognized as Tribal Citizens who are fifty-five (55) years
3	of age	e or olde	r.	
4				
5	I.	Writte	n publ	ic comment must be signed and dated. Written public comment will be
6	availa	able for p	oublic	viewing at the Tribal Council's Legislative Office in the Government
7	Build	ing of th	e Little	e Traverse Bay Bands of Odawa Indians. A request for copies of the written
8	public	e comme	ent sha	ll be processed as a "Request for Public Documents".
9				
10	J.	Tribal	Counc	cil and Committees will not accept commentsverbal or written, nor discuss
11	matte	rs that re	elate to	any one of the following:
12				
13			1.	Personnel matters.
14				
15			2.	Personal information affecting an individual's privacy, including personnel
16				ers or medical conditions or similar matters that constitute a clearly
17				arranted invasion of personal privacy unless it pertains to the Tribal Citizens
18			who i	is raising the matter.
19				
20			3.	Matters covered by attorney client privilege.
21			4	
22			4.	Matters considered confidential by other Statutes.
23			_	Makana ara alima ara 6 da aki 1 larahara ara 1 ara 1 ara 4 ara 6 da Triba ara
24			5.	Matters regarding confidential business or legal matters of the Tribe or a
25 26			Triba	ıl Citizen.
27			6.	Matters that could impair a criminal investigation.
28			0.	watters that could impair a criminal investigation.
29				
30	IX.	SETT	ING T	THE AGENDA for TRIBAL COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE
31		TINGS	1110 1	THE RIGHT OF TREATE COUNCIL TRUE COMMITTEE
32	1,1111	111100		
33	Α.	Agend	la Ren	quests.
34	-	8	4	ı

Any Tribal Councilor, the Executive, or Tribal Citizen may submit an item to be placed on an

1	_	_	enda items should include the item(s) to be discussed and any supporting documents
2	if app	olicable	<i>.</i> .
3	В.	Sub	mission of Agenda Request.
5	ъ,	Subi	imssion of Agenda Request.
6	Agen	ıda iten	ns should be submitted to the Legislative Office in a timely manner prior to a
7	_		cheduled Tribal Council meeting or Committee Meeting.
8		•	
9	C.	Ame	endment of the Agenda.
LO			
l1	Any	amendı	ment to the agenda after it has been adopted shall be by motion.
12			
13	D.	Reco	ording.
L4			
15	The a	agenda	shall include a statement that the Tribal Council or Committee Meeting or Work-
L 6	Sessi	on will	be recorded.
L7			
18	X.	ORI	DER OF MEETING
19			
20	A.	Call	to Order.
21			
22		1.	The starting time of Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meeting and Committee
23			tings are set by Motion by the last Regularly Scheduled Meeting of each calendar
24		year	and may only be changed by motion.
25			
26		2.	The starting time of Special Meetings or Emergency Meetings shall be set out in
27		the n	notice given for such meetings.
28		2	
29		3.	The Legislative Leader, Secretary, or Treasurer, shall call Tribal Council
30			tings to order in accordance with enumerated powers as stated in the Constitution
31		Artic	ele VII § C.
32 33		4.	The Committee Chairperson shall call the Committee meeting to order.
34		7.	The Committee Champerson shall can the Committee meeting to order.
35	В.	One	ning Ceremony.
		Spe	mme conomonj.

1						
2	A Reg	gularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meeting may commence with an opening ceremony.				
3						
4	C.	Roll Call.				
5						
6		1. Either the Legislative Leader or the Secretary shall take a roll call of Tribal				
7		Councilors after a Tribal Council meeting has been called to order. The Committee				
8		Chairperson shall take roll call of Committee members after the Committee meeting has				
9		been called to order.				
10						
11 12		2. Based on the results of the roll call, the Legislative Leader or Secretary will announce whether or not a quorum is established for the Tribal Council meeting. Based				
13		on the results of the roll call, the Committee Chairperson will announce whether or not a				
14		quorum is established for the Committee meeting.				
15		querum se termenem ser une e committee metronis.				
16	D.	Adoption of Agenda.				
17		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
18		1. Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meeting: The proposed agenda for a				
19		meeting shall be adopted by motion with a majority vote and shall be considered the				
20		official agenda of the meeting.				
21						
22		2. Special Meeting: The agenda for the meeting shall be adopted as presented and				
23		shall not be amendable.				
24						
25		3. Emergency Meeting: The agenda for the meeting shall be adopted as presented				
26		and shall not be amendable.				
27						
28	E.	Approval of Minutes.				
29						
30		1. The minutes of the previous Regularly Scheduled Meeting, and Special or				
31		Emergency meeting(s) shall be approved as presented, or as corrected.				
32						
33		2. Tribal Councilors may propose to correct the minutes by adding or deleting				
34		material from the presented minutes.				
35						

1		3.	If any discrepancies are found within the minutes, Legislative staff will review			
2		the meeting recordings and will verify for accuracy either the presented minutes or shall				
3		make a correct to the minutes.				
4						
5		4.	The minutes of Closed Session shall be kept for Closed Sessions. Closed Session			
6		Min	utes and the meeting record shall be disclosed to the public in accordance with this			
7		Polic	cy.			
8						
9	F.	Acti	on Items.			
10						
11			Item on the agenda shall be introduced by the Legislative Leader or Committee			
12		_	, and the Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson shall then entertain			
13	discu	ssion f	or action on items under consideration.			
14						
15	G.	Gen	eral Session for Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meetings.			
16						
17		_	en in accordance with the Open Meetings Act and shall follow the agenda as adopted.			
18			sion may contain reports, action items, and other matters for discussion, including			
19	but no	ot limit	ted to the following:			
20						
21		1.	Legislative Leader Report.			
22						
23		2.	Secretary Report.			
24		2	Tues sures Denost			
25		3.	Treasurer Report.			
26 27		4.	Committee Report(s).			
28		7.	Commutee Report(s).			
29		5.	Tribal Councilor Reports.			
30		J.	Thou Councilor Reports.			
31		6.	Legislative Staff Reports.			
32		0.	Legislative Saili Reports.			
33		7.	Receipt of the Tribal Chairperson's Executive Report.			
34			1 1 P			
35	Н.	Gen	eral Session for Regularly Scheduled Committee Meetings.			
			- · ·			

1					
2	Shall be open in accordance with the Open Meetings Act and shall follow the agenda as adopted				
3	General Session may contain reports, action items, and other matters for discussion, including				
4	but not lin	mited to the	e following:		
5					
6	1.	Gene	ral Session		
7					
8	2.	Old E	Business		
9					
10	3.	New	business		
11					
12	4.	Gene	ral Discussions		
13					
14	I. C	losed Sessi	on.		
15					
16	Tribal Co	ouncil and C	Committees may meet in Closed Session. Closed session topics shall be		
17	limited to	personnel	under the authority of Tribal Council, litigation, confidential business or		
18	legal mat	ters, or othe	er matters that raise significant privacy or confidentiality concerns, and other		
19	matters as	s may be de	efined by relevant statute. Closed Session shall be closed to all persons other		
20	than Tribal Councilors, Committee Members and those authorized by Tribal Council or				
21	Committe	ee. Motions	s for Closed Session shall include the reason necessitating the closed session.		
22					
23	1.	Purp	ose. Closed Sessions are intended to permit the Tribal Council or its		
24	Co	ommittees 1	to engage in open and frank discussion regarding matters that require		
25	cc	onfidentialit	ty, involve proprietary business matters, personnel, or litigation and litigation		
26	st	rategy and	other matters as may be defined by relevant statute.		
27					
28	2.	Calli	ng for Closed Session. There are two methods for calling for Closed		
29	Se	ession:			
30					
31		a.	Motion to Move to Closed Session.		
32			i. During the General Session a Tribal Councilor or Committee		
33			Member may make a motion to move to Closed Session including the		
34			reason necessitating the closed session.		
35			ii. If the motion to move to Closed Session passes the meeting shall		

1				imme	ediately move to Closed Session and shall be conducted in accordance
2				with t	the procedures in this Policy.
3					
4			b.	Agen	nda Request.
5					
6				i.	A Tribal Councilor, Committee Member or the Executive may
7				make	an agenda request for a Closed Session.
8				ii.	Agenda requests shall indicate the purpose for a Closed Session.
9					
LO		3.	Endi	ng Clos	sed Sessions. Any Tribal Councilor or Committee Member may
l1		move	e to end	Closed	Session. If the motion carries Closed Session will end and the
12		meet	ing will	move b	pack into open session.
L3					
L4	J.	Adjo	urnmei	nt.	
L 5					
L 6	The L	egislat	ive Lead	der or C	Committee Chairperson may call for a motion to adjourn the meeting.
L7	The n	notion 1	to adjou	rn must	be approved by a majority vote of the Tribal Councilors or
18	Comr	nittee N	Member	s preser	nt at the meeting.
19					
20					
21	XI.	ACT	IONS I	3Y THI	E TRIBAL COUNCIL
22					
23	A.	Actio	on by R	oll Call	Vote.
24					
25	Roll (Call Vo	tes will	be utiliz	zed for nominations of Judges, Justices, Prosecutor and other Tribal
26	Coun	cil deer	ned app	ointed p	positions. Additionally, Roll Call Votes will be used in all cases
27	where	the Co	onstituti	on spec	rifies that Tribal Council action shall be taken through the enactment
28	of law	v. Trib	al Coun	cil shall	l, whether by Statute or Resolution, do the following through Roll
29	call v	ote:			
30					
31		1.	When	ı makin	g laws necessary to exercise Tribal jurisdiction, including civil and
32		crimi	nal auth	ority ar	nd the regulation of commerce.
33					
34		2.	When	ı provid	ling jurisdiction of the Tribe over Indian Child Welfare and all other
35		dome	estic rela	ations m	natters.

1								
2		3.	When governing issuance of LTBB charters of incorporation for economic or					
3		other	other purposes.					
4								
5		4.	When implementing the right to exclude persons from Tribal lands.					
6								
7		5.	When setting qualifications for Commissions, Boards and Committees					
8		appo	intments.					
9								
10		6.	When governing the encumbrance of lands or other intangible assets and the					
11		encu	mbrance and disposition of non-real estate tangible assets.					
12								
13		7.	When appropriating funds.					
14								
15		8.	When levying taxes and governing the collection of taxes and license fees.					
16								
17		9.	When providing for management of any and all economic affairs and enterprises					
18		of the	e Tribe.					
19								
20	В.	Actio	on by Motion.					
21								
22	Unde	r the fo	bllowing circumstances, the Tribal Council shall act by Motion:					
23								
24		1.	When approving Regulations.					
25								
26		2.	When approving Policies and/or procedures.					
27		_						
28		3.	When approving land use plans.					
29								
30		4.	When approving leases.					
31		_						
32		5.	When employing legal counsel.					
33			W/I : 41 C1: C1 :4 : 4					
34		6.	When approving the filing of lawsuits in the name of the Tribe.					
35								

1 2		7.	When establishing and maintaining government offices for the Tribe.
3		8.	When approving creation or dissolution of Executive divisions or departments.
4 5		9.	When approving negotiations.
6		10	
7		10.	When purchasing, receiving by gift, or acquiring: land, interests in land, personal
8		prope	rty or other tangible assets on behalf of the Tribe.
9		11.	When requesting that the government of the United States take land into trust for
10 11			When requesting that the government of the United States take land into trust for nefit of the Tribe.
12		the be	ment of the Tribe.
13		12.	When approving all sales, or dispositions of Tribal lands approved by a majority
14			y referendum, or an annual membership meeting quorum.
15		, 555 5	y received the manner and the first
16		13.	When establishing Commissions, Boards and Committees and approving
17		appoii	ntments as presented by the Executive.
18			
19		14.	When establishing lower courts upon request from the judiciary.
20			
21		15.	When establishing rules to provide access by Tribal members to the records of the
22		Tribe.	
23			
24		16.	When adopting rules of conduct to govern all levels of Tribal government.
25			
26		17.	When acknowledging receipt of reports or other information.
27			
28		18.	All other matters, not requiring a Roll Call Vote.
29			
30		A COTTO	
31	XII.	ACTI	ONS BY THE COMMITTEE
32	A 11 C	۰° ۱	
33	All of	ncial ac	etions of the Committee shall be by motion.
34			
35			

XIII. MEETING MINUTES

1
2

A. Official Record.

- 5 Minutes provide as much information as possible to the Tribal Citizens pertaining to the
- 6 deliberative actions of the Tribal Council or Committee. Once approved, the minutes will be the
- 7 official record of the Tribal Council or Committee meeting. Minutes are the official record of
- 8 what is done at a Tribal Council or Committee meeting; including but not limited to the date and
- 9 time the meeting occurred, the call to order, roll call, motions or proposed motions, seconds, etc.

B. General Provisions.

1. The Tribal Council Secretary, Committee Secretary, and Legislative staff will be responsible for taking the minutes during Regularly Scheduled Meetings, Special, and Emergency Meetings. The Legislative staff shall be responsible for recording the online Tribal Council meetings.

2. The minutes shall reflect what was done, not what was said, at the meeting.

3. The minutes shall not reflect the Secretary's or staff's opinion, favorable or otherwise, on any of the issues discussed.

4. After approval, certification, and authenticating of the minutes, the Secretary will store a paper copy of the minutes in a binder under the control of the Secretary, and also forward a certified original to the Legislative Office for the Official Record.

5. The Legislative Office shall store all audio and visual recording of an online Tribal Council meeting, Work- Session, Committee meeting, and other Tribal Council meetings on the Tribal Council "P" drive.

6. Recording shall be accessible to Tribal Councilors, Committee Members and Legislative staff.

7. All audio and visual recording of an electronic Tribal Council meeting, Work-Session, Committee meeting, and other Tribal Council meetings will also be

1		made	available ł	by posting to the "Citizens' Only Portal" on the Tribal website.
2	•	C 4	4 641	3.6
3	C.	Conte	ents of the	Minutes.
4 5		1.	The head	ling will contain the name of the legislative body holding the meeting,
				ing, and address of the meeting location.
6 7		uate 0	i tile illeet	ing, and address of the meeting location.
8		2.	The oner	ning section will include:
9		2.	The open	ing section will include.
10			a. Nota	ation on whether a closed session was held;
l1				e the meeting was called to order;
12			c. The	name of the person conducting the opening ceremony;
13			d. List	of Tribal Councilors or Committee Members present;
L4			e. List	of Tribal Councilors or Committee Members absent;
L 5			f. List	of Legislative Office staff present;
16			g. List	of Executive Branch members present; and
L7			h. List	of Guests present.
18				
19		3.	The body	y of the minutes will contain a separate paragraph for each matter
20		consid	dered or di	scussed:
21				
22			a. A	all motions put before the Tribal Council or Committee, stating verbatim
23			the conte	ent of the motion that was put before the Tribal Council or Committee for
24			consider	ation. Each paragraph will contain:
25				
26			i.	The name of the maker of the motion;
27			ii.	The name of the person seconding the motion;
28			iii.	The verbatim content of the motion;
29			iv.	Roll call votes shall contain the name and vote of each Tribal
30				Councilor or Committee Member; or
31			v.	A vote by acclamation, shall list the result of the vote with a record
32				of those by name who oppose, abstain or are absent; and
33			vi.	The result of the motion shall be a statement of the vote.
34			vii.	If a motion that is placed on the agenda fails to have a Councilor or
35				Committee Member make the motion or second the motion, then the

1		motion fails. The minutes will reflect that the motion failed for lack
2		of motion or lack of support.
3		
4	b. To	pics of discussion that appear on the agenda, and each paragraph will
5	contain:	
6		
7	i.	The name of the Tribal Councilor or Committee Member bringing
8		forth a topic of discussion;
9	ii.	A brief one sentence description of the topic brought before the
10		Tribal Council or Committee, but no attempt will be made to
11		summarize the discussion;
12	iii.	The manner of disposition of the topic, i.e. topic to be further
13		pursued at next Work-Session, topic to be brought to the attention of
14		the Executive, etc.
15		
16	c. Tri	ibal Elders Comment/Public Comment, and each paragraph will
17	contain:	
18	i.	The name of the Tribal Elder or Tribal Citizen addressing the Tribal
19		Council;
20	ii.	The subject matter brought by the Tribal Citizen, but no attempt will
21		be made to summarize the comments; and
22	iii.	Tribal Council or Committee will act in accordance with Article
23		VIII, § J of this Policy regarding "public comments".
24		
25	d. No	otation of Closed Sessions, including its purpose;
26		
27	i.	The time entering Closed Session; and
28	ii.	The time returning to General Session.
29		
30	e. No	station for the time of arrival to the meeting and final departure from the
31	meeting, o	of the Tribal Councilors or Committee Members, but not for Tribal
32	Councilor	s or Committee members leaving the assembly for short periods;
33		
34	i.	Notation of recesses taken during the meeting; and
35	ii.	The time of adjournment.

1					
2		4.	The certification shall state that the minutes have been read and approved as		
3		writte	en. The certification shall also include the signature of the Secretary, the date of		
4		certif	ication, and the application of the Tribal Seal by the Secretary.		
5					
6					
7	XIV.	DISC	CLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES		
8					
9	A.	Minu	Minutes and recordings of the session shall be kept of all Closed Sessions. These Minutes		
10	and re	cord sł	nould reflect the items discussed and any action taken on an item.		
11					
12	В.	Close	ed Session Minutes shall be placed in a sealed file marked "Confidential" and shall		
13	be mai	intaine	d by the Legislative Office with access to Closed Session Minutes, which are sealed,		
14	shall b	e limit	ted to sitting Tribal Councilors with the following exceptions:		
15					
16		1.	The Executive may be authorized to have access to the minutes of closed sessions		
17		in wh	nich the Executive participated.		
18					
19		2.	The Legal Department may be authorized to access the minutes of a closed		
20		sessio	on by the Tribal Council. Access to closed session minutes shall be limited to		
21		const	ultative or guidance purposes, and shall be subject to the attorney/client privilege.		
22					
23	C.	Minutes from a Closed Session shall be disclosed to the public two (2) years from the			
24	date th	e Clos	sed Session was held; with the following exceptions:		
25					
26		1.	Items relating to litigation or litigation strategy shall not be disclosed until the		
27		litiga	tion has concluded.		
28					
29		2.	A determination that disclosure of an item may endanger the health or safety of		
30		any p	erson. Such a determination must be made by 3/4 majority of the Tribal Council.		
31					
32		3.	A determination that disclosure of an item(s) relating to proprietary or		
33			dential business information will cause substantial harm to the viability or integrity		
34		of the	e business to which the item relates. Such a determination must be made by 3/4		
35		majority of the Tribal Council.			

1						
2	D.	Revi	ew. Prior to Closed Session Minutes being disclosed, the Tribal Council shall			
3	revie	review the Closed Session Minutes to determine whether any of the exceptions to disclosure				
4	listed	apply.				
5						
6		1.	Those items determined to be under an exception shall not be disclosed.			
7						
8		2.	Items which are not disclosed based on exception shall be reviewed on an annual			
9		basis	thereafter to determine whether the exception is still valid.			
10						
11	E.		ed Session Minutes shall be disclosed in the same manner as the Minutes of a			
12	Regu	larly So	cheduled Tribal Council Meeting.			
13						
14						
15	XV.	CHA	ANGE IN MEETING SCHEDULE or CLOSURE			
16		CI.				
17	A.	Chai	nge in Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council or Committee Meeting.			
18	NI1		and he made in the date on time for any Decylory Schedyled Martin a sycant by			
19		_	nay be made in the date or time for any Regularly Scheduled Meeting except by ice of any changes in the meeting schedule shall be posted on the Tribal website.			
20 21			anges to the Meeting schedule must be made five (5) days prior to the meeting.			
22	None	C OI CII	anges to the weeting schedule must be made five (3) days prior to the meeting.			
23	В.	Chai	nges in Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Work-Session.			
24	D.	Citai	iges in Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Work-Session.			
25	No cl	nange n	nay be made in the date or time for any Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Work-			
26	Session except by motion of the Tribal Council. Notice of any changes in the meeting schedule					
27	shall be posted on the Tribal website. Notice of changes to the Work-Session schedule must be					
28		made five (5) days prior to the meeting.				
29			,			
30	C.	Can	celing of Tribal Council or Committee Meeting or Work-Session.			
31						
32	Any	cancela	tion of a Regularly Scheduled Meeting or Work-Session shall require an approved			
33	motic	on and s	shall be posted immediately to the Tribal website.			
34						

Emergency Closing.

35

D.

1						
2		1. At times, emergencies can disrupt business operations. In extreme cases, these				
3		circumstances may require the closing of the government offices or work facilities.				
4						
5		2. Eme	ergencies may be related to severe weather, fires, or power failures, or other			
6		safety or we	elfare conditions.			
7						
8		3. Tribal Council and Committees delegates the authority to authorize emergency				
9		closures to any of the following individuals:				
10						
11		a.	Safety Director			
12		b.	Facility Director			
13		c.	Chief of Law Enforcement			
14		d.	Chair/Vice Chair or Tribal Administrator			
15		e.	Legislative Leader or Legislative Office Manager			
16						
17		4. Reg	ularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meeting. In order to meet the Constitution			
18		requirement	t of Tribal Council holding at least one (1) meeting per month, if an			
19		emergency closure occurs and it is the only Regularly Scheduled Tribal Council Meeting				
20		scheduled for the month, and no other Tribal Council meeting was held during the month,				
21		then Tribal Council will meet on the next business day when the Tribal Government				
22		Center or of	ther government office is open. Tribal Council may change the location and			
23		time of the	meeting, provided that it is held on the next business day that the Tribal			
24		Governmen	t Center or other government offices are open.			
25						
26						
27	XVI.	MEETING	S, WORK-SESSION, AND HEARING CONDUCT			
28						
29	A.	The Legisla	tive Leader or Committee Chairperson will request that all participants in an			
30	electro	onic meeting	place their microphone on "mute" unless they are speaking.			
31						
32	B.	Any electro	nic recordings of Tribal Council or Committee meetings by individuals shall			
33	be pro	hibited.				
34						

The Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson will take reasonable actions to ensure

C.

1	that the meeting, work-session or hearing is conducted orderly.				
2	D				
3	D.	Disruption, display of unruly behavior, abusive language, or any personal attacks, in any will not be tolerated. The form of disruption, display of unruly behavior, abusive language			
4 5					
6	or any personal attacks may include, but is not limited to, verbal, written, electronic chat, and visual such as a hand gesture, photo, or meme.				
7	visuai	such as a hand gesture, photo, or meme.			
8	E.	In the instance of disruption, display of unruly behavior, abusive language, or any			
9	persor	sonal attacks in any form, the Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson shall provide a			
10	warning to the person(s) to discontinue such behavior or they shall be removed from the meeting				
11	work-	session or hearing.			
12					
13	F.	If a disruption, display of unruly behavior, abusive language, or personal attacks continue			
14	beyon	beyond a warning to discontinue such behavior, the Legislative Leader or Committee			
15	Chairperson may remove the person from the meeting, work-session or hearing without further				
16	warni	ng.			
17					
18	G.	If a Tribal Council or Committee Meeting becomes disrupted, the Legislative Leader or			
19	Comn	nittee Chairperson may request a motion to adjourn the meeting.			
20					
21	H.	If a work-session or hearing becomes disrupted, the Legislative Leader or Committee			
22	Chair	person may adjourn the work-session or hearing.			
23					
24	I.	Hearing Conduct			
25					
26		1. The Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson or their designee (Presiding			
27		Councilor) shall preside over the hearing and will take reasonable actions to ensure that			
28		the hearing is conducted orderly.			
29 30		2. The Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson or their designee (Presiding			
31					
32		Councilor) may terminate the testimony of an individual if he or she is considered disorderly, abusive, disruptive, or if testimony is disconnected from the purpose of the			
33		hearing.			
		mounts.			
35		3. The Legislative Leader or Committee Chairperson or their designee (Presiding			
34					

1	Councilor) may prevent the encouragement of audience demonstrations, such as
2	applause, cheering, display of signs, or other conduct disruptive of the hearing.
3	
4	
5	
5	CERTIFICATION
7	
3	
9	